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REPORT FOR ACTION 

 

Review of Toronto Parking Authority Policy 
Resolution 3-6: Residential Overnight Parking 

Date:   May 9, 2022  
To:       Toronto and East York Community Council   

From:  Director, Permits and Enforcement, Transportation Services 

Wards:  4, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14 and 19 

SUMMARY 

 
This staff report is about a matter that Community Council has delegated authority from 
City Council to make a final decision.  
 
The purpose of this report is to respond to a request from Toronto and East York 
Community Council to review the proposed Toronto Parking Authority (TPA) policy 
resolution regarding the overnight use of TPA off-street parking lots in residential areas 
by residents with a valid on-street parking permit. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
The Director, Permits and Enforcement, Transportation Services recommends that:    
  
1. Toronto and East York Community Council receive this report for information. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 
There are no financial impacts associated with the adoption of this report. 

DECISION HISTORY 

 
At its meeting on April 22, 2022, the Toronto and East York Community Council adopted 
item TE32.88 which requested that Transportation Services report to the May 26, 2022 
Toronto and East York Community Council on a review of PA28.5 "Proposed 
Amendments to Toronto Parking Authority Policy Resolution 3-6: Residential Overnight 
Use" as it pertains to the Toronto and East York Community Council District and the 
impacts to the permit parking system before a final report is submitted to the TPA 
Board. 



Review of Toronto Parking Authority Policy Resolution 3-6: Residential Overnight Parking   
      
Page 2 of 13 

 
The agenda item link is below 
http://app.toronto.ca/tmmis/viewAgendaItemHistory.do?item=2022.TE32.88 
 
On February 18, 2022, the Toronto Parking Authority (TPA) Board considered a report 
which recommended that the Board of Directors provide authority to the TPA to add or 
remove a TPA parking lot from the list of locations where residential permit parking 
program customers are permitted to park overnight. This item was referred to the 
President of the TPA with a request that the TPA consult with local Councillors impacted 
by the proposed changes. 
 
http://app.toronto.ca/tmmis/viewAgendaItemHistory.do?item=2022.PA28.5  
 
 

COMMENTS 

 
 
Councillor Paula Fletcher has expressed concerns that the suggested change in 
authority as proposed in PA28.5 may negatively impact the City's Permit Parking 
program as many areas are oversubscribed and could directly benefit from the ability to 
use TPA lots during overnight periods.  There is concern that consultation with the area 
Councillor may not provide sufficient authority to guide outcomes/decision making which 
may potentially negatively impact area permit holders. 
 

Current Practice 

On-Street Permit Parking - Subscription Rates and Waitlists 
 
The number of available parking permits on any given street or area is determined 
solely on the inventory of available on-street parking spaces.  Off street parking supply 
in TPA lots is not considered when calculating this inventory.  Street specific permits are 
allocated based on a 100 percent subscription rate, while area-based permits are 
subscribed at 10 percent over actual capacity (110 percent).  The latter (over) 
subscription rate is used because not all permit holders will park their vehicles at the 
same time.  However, this practice may, from time to time, result in some permit holders 
being unable to find a parking space in their area due to illegally parked vehicles.   
Permit requests in areas or streets over and above subscription rates are placed on a 
waitlist until a space becomes available. 
 
The number of applicants on any given waitlist can vary from one to 30 or more. There 
are currently 100 permit parking areas and 377 streets where permit parking operates 
on a street specific basis. To date there are 9 waitlisted areas and 28 waitlisted streets 
City-wide with 6 permit areas and 11 streets within Toronto and East York.  
 
Use of TPA Lots for On-Street Permit Parking 
 

http://app.toronto.ca/tmmis/viewAgendaItemHistory.do?item=2022.TE32.88
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During the 1980's as courtesy service to the community, the TPA in consultation with 
City staff determined that underutilized TPA off-street parking lots could be used to 
accommodate demand for overnight permit parking holders in permit areas/streets 
where available on-street parking was at or near capacity. The courtesy is offered to 
vehicles displaying a valid on-street parking permit. Transportation Services has seen 
little to no change in the list of carparks designated for overnight use in the last 20 
years. 
 
The current process, as administered by the TPA, is based on the availability of TPA 
lots that do not exceed an 85 percent overnight lot (commercial) utilization threshold.  
Parking lot locations or hours of operation are established by the TPA and approved 
through the TPA Board of Directors, which consists of two Toronto City Councillors and 
five TPA members.  These lots are then added to Annex A (now proposed as Schedule 
A) of Policy Resolution 3-6 - Record of Carparks Designated for Residential Overnight 
Use. 
 
Although Transportation Services staff do not actively advertise this parking service to 
customers, staff are prepared to update permit parking literature to communicate the 
available TPA lots in the future. 
 
Location of TPA Lots Compared to Waitlisted Permit Parking Areas or Streets 
 
Since its inception in the 1980's, surplus parking capacity provided in TPA lots has 
provided some relief to permit holders as these lots provide a convenient alternative to 
park legally until the permit holder can locate a parking spot on the street.  However, the 
actual number of permit holders utilizing these lots is not known as Transportation 
Services does not track lot usage.  
 
Based on discussions with TPA staff, there is a surplus in capacity at TPA lots overnight 
that can be leveraged to supplement the on-street permit parking supply for residents.  
   
The location of TPA lots relative to permit parking areas and streets with waitlists are 
listed in Attachments 1 and 2. 
 

Proposed Changes to Practice 

The TPA have indicated that in response to an increase in the number of requests by 
residential on-street permit holders to park overnight within TPA car parks a review of 
TPA Policy Resolution 3-6, was initiated.  Based on the outcome of their review, the 
TPA are proposing that the TPA Board of Directors delegate authority to TPA staff to 
add or remove TPA lots from this program on an as-needed basis. This would include 
any necessary adjustment of the hours when overnight parking is permitted within the 
lot based on demand and capacity limits, as well as the availability of on-street permits 
in the applicable on-street residential permit area.  
 
TPA staff have indicated that this change in process would provide greater flexibility in 
the administration of the policy and would minimize community impacts in areas where 
the supply of on-street permit parking is limited. 
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In the current TPA policy, only lots that have an overnight occupancy of less than 85 
percent would be considered for overflow Permit Parking users.  Conversely, if a lot has 
an overnight occupancy above that 85 percent, they would not be considered for this 
program or may be considered for removal from the program.  

TPA staff have indicated that although changes would no longer be vetted through the 
TPA Board of Directors (which presently consists of two City Councillors) appropriate 
processes will be in place to ensure that the Ward Councillor is consulted about any 
planned changes in their ward and that Transportation Services and permit holders are 
provided adequate notice of any changes being made. 

Transportation Services staff are confident that the changes being proposed by the TPA 
will not change or diminish the ability of Transportation Services or council/councillors to 
provide productive input into the selection process related to the addition or removal of 
TPA lots for use by residents with overnight on-street parking permits. Moreover, in view 
of future parking trends in TPA lots, additional lot capacity for overnight permit holders 
may be more abundant in the foreseeable future. 

Based on discussions with TPA, updated wording to Policy 3-6 Residential Overnight 
Use will be sought at the May 27, 2022  TPA Board of Directors meeting.  Updated 
policy wording will identify that the Area Councillor will be consulted on any changes to 
car parks designated for residential overnight use including the addition or removal of a 
car park from this policy and/or any changes to a car park’s hours of 
operation.  Furthermore, any car parks listed under TPA Policy 3-6 permitting overnight 
use will continue to be done so at no additional cost to that of the residential permit cost. 

CONTACT 

Andre R. Filippetti, CET, Manager Permits and Enforcement - Parking and 
Administration, Transportation Services, 416-392-1525, Andre.Filippetti@toronto.ca 

SIGNATURE 

David J. Twaddle, CET 
Director, Permits and Enforcement, Transportation Services 

mailto:Andre.Filippetti@toronto.ca
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ATTACHMENTS 

 
Attachment 1: TPA Lots With Residential Overnight Uses and Adjacencies to Permit 
Parking Areas 
Attachment 2: Illustration of TPA lots which allow for Residential Overnight permit 
parking users within Toronto and East York Wards 
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Attachment 1: TPA Lots With Residential Overnight Uses and Adjacent to 
Permit Parking Areas 
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Attachment 2: Illustration of TPA lots which allow for Residential Overnight permit 
parking users within Toronto and East York Wards 
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